
 

Contact:  :  Richard Jefferies, Chief Democratic Services Officer 
 
E-mail: richard.jefferies@newport.gov.uk 
Date of Issue: 22 September 2015 
 
 

Agenda 
Performance Board 

 
Date: Monday, 28 September 2015 
 
Time: 3.00 pm 
 
Venue: Committee Room 1 - Civic Centre 
 
To: Councillors R Bright (Chair), D Davies and R Truman 
 

 
 
Item  Wards Affected 

 
1   Apologies   

 
All Wards 

2   Declarations of Interest   
 

All Wards 

3   Minutes  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

All Wards 

4   Performance Analysis 2014/15  (Pages 7 - 32) 
 

All Wards 

5   Improvement Plan 15/16 Regeneration Investment and Housing 
Services: Developing and Regenerating the City theme.  (Pages 33 - 
40) 
 

All Wards 

6   Improvement Plan 15/16 Regeneration Investment and Housing 
Services: Supporting young people into education, employment or 
training.  (Pages 41 - 52) 
 

All Wards 

 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Cabinet Sub Group Performance Board: 23 June 2015 
 
 
Present: Councillor R C Bright (In the Chair), Councillor Truman and Councillor D Davies 
 
Also in attendance: Councillors Giles, Wilcox 
 
 
1.  Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 23 March 2015 were taken as read and confirmed. 
 
2.  Early Performance Analysis 14/15 
 
The Board was provided with an early indication of the likely performance outturns for 
2014/15. It was explained that a full analysis including comparisons against other Welsh 
cities and Wales average data will be presented to Performance Board in September 2015. 
 
This report gives highlights of performance of service areas against the indicators in their 
service plans for 14/15. There are 208 measures which are assessed against internally set 
targets and previous year performance. The performance of National Strategic Indicators 
(NSI’s) and Public Accountability Measures (PAM’s) is also analysed. 
 
Board members were pleased to note that early indications for performance in 14/15 show; 
  

 76% have performed better than target. 

 62% of our service plan measures have performed better than last year, 
 
It was also pleasing to note that performance on service plan indicators against target had 
increased by 13 % to 77 % of measures meeting or exceeding targets 
 
There was a considerable improvement and there was little doubt that the sharper focus and 
tighter auditing regime was taking effect. The good partnership working between members 
and officers in achieving these improvements was recognised by the committee. 
 
The issue of maintaining progress with declining resources was discussed as was the need 
for Regulators to appreciate the economic conditions faced by the Council. 
 
Overall the Performance Board was pleased with the early analysis and looked forward to 
more detail in the autumn.    
 
Agreed 
 
To note the positive early indicators and to receive a further update in September  
 
 
3         Flying Start   
 
Flying Start aims to make a decisive difference to the lives of children in the most 
disadvantaged communities.  The Flying Start programme offers eligible parents free quality 
childcare for 2-3 year olds, parenting support, an enhanced health visitor service and 
support for early language development. 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



The Performance Board was provided with an update on this Improvement Objective 
 
The three priority areas are: 
 

 To provide targeted intervention to children aged 9 months to 4 years old identified 
as requiring additional language support.  

 To ensure children identified with Additional Needs are supported within the 
programme promoting seamless transition into and out of Flying Start childcare 

 To support parents to acquire the skills/strategies to parent effectively 
 
Progress to date this financial year on each of these priorities was presented in detail to the 
Board and members were pleased to note improvements across the three priority areas. 
 
Members were informed that over 500 parents had engaged in the programme in 2014/15 
and over 800 children. One outcome was likely to be an increase in statementing and this 
could be an issue for schools.  
 
Local needs were being identified by working in communities and work was being done to 
address identified local issues. 
 
Board members considered that Newport’s efficiency in terms of administrative costs of 
providing the Flying Start initiative was worthy of being highlighted as a strength  
  
 
Agreed 
 
To note progress on the Flying Start priorities 
 
 
4. Corporate Health Measures 
 
The Performance Board was presented with a report that set out a mixed picture of 
performance on progress on all corporate health measures for 2014/15 against targets. 
 
In terms of sickness absence, it was disappointing to note that after several years of 
reducing absence, sickness absence across the Council had increased to 9.47 days in 
March 2015 from 8.87 days in March 2014 (8% increase) and 9.26 days in March 2013 (2% 
increase).  
 
It was pointed out that the number of days lost was still under the five year average of 10.75 
days per employee before the current intervention measures were put in place in 2012;and 
that other Councils had been reporting similar increases. 
 
Service area absence figures were set out in detail in the report as were sickness trends. 
Reasons for absence were also identified in the report. It was clear that long term sickness 
absence had a higher impact on sickness absence figures in Newport that shorter term 
illness.  
 
As to return to Work interviews, these must be completed within 7 days of the employee 
returning to work. The target for 2014/15 was set at 75% with an out-turn of 69.37%. 
Performance across service areas was set out in the report  

Page 4



 
Members were informed that “My Review “is a meeting where an employee and their 
manager discuss their performance over the past 12 months and set new objectives for the 
coming year. The target for 2014/15 was set at 75% of employees completing their review 
for all service areas with the expectation that this would be exceeded. It is pleasing to note 
that most service areas have exceeded the target and even those service areas that missed 
target have made significant improvements over the last 12 months 
 
In terms of additional staffing (Overtime) a 10% reduction in spending was expected in 

2014/15 with a target of £521k.  Members were disappointed to note that the out-turn at the 

end of the financial year was £581k, exceeding target by 11.5%. 

 

The Board was also disappointed to note that although a 10% reduction in spend on agency 

staff was expected in 2014/15, the out-turn at the end of the financial year was exceeded by 

25%  

 

Targets for the coming year were set out in the report. 

 

Performance Board members consider that Chief Officers needed to: 
 

 Identify service areas and services where absence figures were high and target 
action in those areas 

 Identify service areas and services where Return to Work  figures were disappointing  
and target action with managers and Team Leaders in those areas. The Chair 
considered that interviews by other managers may be considered as a potential 
development  

 Develop resource plans so that overtime can be properly planned and targets based 
on the agreed resource plans  

 Employment of agency staff should be included in the those issues subject to 
business case approval, recognising that in some areas of work the need for agency 
staff will arise urgently and will not allow for a formal process  

 Ensure we are getting the best possible deal from the Agency Framework 
arrangement  

 
Agreed 
 

I. To note the current position and to ask Chief Officers to consider the proposals of the 
Board 

II. To agree the proposed targets for 2015-2016 
 
 
5. Recycling  
 
The Performance Board was informed that the Council had avoided the potential fine for not 
meeting targets on recycling. 
 
The Performance Board was provided with an update on this Improvement Objective 

Page 5



 
The priority areas are: 
 

 To understand the reasons why 30% of Newport residents do not recycle 
 

 In partnership with WG, WLGA and WRAP under the Collaborative Change 
programme (CCP), Newport City Council is planning to undertake a comprehensive 
trial of approximately 600 properties using the best practice options on a small 
number of properties to evaluate how we might meet the 2025 target of 70%. 
 

 The Council will further increase recycling at the household waste recycling centre by 
increasing staff presence and assisting residents to segregate the waste they bring to 
the centre. 
 

 Commence full Prosiect Gwyrdd (PG) waste to energy contract in Q3. 
 

 Commence Cwm-y-Fory food waste recycling contract end of Q1. 
 

Progress to date this financial year on each of these priorities was presented in detail to the 
Board and members noted action taken across the three priority areas. 
 
The Board was informed of the excellent work of the Scrutiny Committee and the Policy 
Review Group who had worked so hard and effectively on this matter. The door- stepping 
campaign would need to be analysed in the coming year   
 
Performance Board Members agreed that a trial use of new recycling boxes, perhaps 
including trolley boxes, would be helpful to evaluate the best methods of meeting the 70% 
target 
 
Members also agreed that education and encouragement were key factors and that a waste 
& recycling marketing campaign should be employed to encourage residents in Newport to 
reduce, reuse and recycle 100% of their waste. This should include the involvement of 
young people and children by way of the schools. 
 
Poor performing geographical areas should be targeted as part of the campaign.  
 
It was explained that for the current year an additional 6% recycling needed to be achieved. 
Prosiect Gwrydd would help to produce around 5% but there was more to be done.  
 
Newport remains an exemplar for Wales and is still quoted as such. Whilst some Capital 
funding is available to assist in improving recycling, this is not supported by any revenue 
assistance.  It was agreed that the Cabinet members and relevant officers would meet 
representatives of Welsh Government to discuss funding opportunities.  
 
Agreed 
 
To note the current position and agree the initiatives as suggested 
Head of Streetscene to organise the meeting with Welsh Government as suggested above.  
 
 

 

Page 6



Report 
Performance Board  
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  28th September 2015 
 
Item No:    see above 
 

Subject Performance Analysis 2014/15 
 

Purpose To inform the Board about the overall performance of the city council in 2014/15, including 

comparisons with Wales average and other Welsh urban area performance 
 

Author  Rachel Kalahar, Performance Management Officer 

 

Ward All 

 

Summary Each year analysis of our performance measures is undertaken. Internal and external audit 

of performance data has been carried out and data for the other 21 authorities in Wales is 
now available for comparison  

71% of our national measures have performed better than last year 
76% have performed better than target 
52% have performance better than Wales Average 

 
 

Proposal The Board are requested to 

 Note the contents of the report 

 Request an update at the December meeting of the Board to show performance of the 
quartile 4 measures identified in this report 

 
Action by  Strategic Directors and Heads of Service 

 

Timetable Immediate 

 
This report was prepared after consultation with: 

 
   Chief Executive 
   Strategic Directors 
   Heads of Service 

 

Signed 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



Background 
 
Service Plan Measures Performance against Previous Years 
This comparator highlights the rate of progress made over a period of time. The chart below shows the percentage of measures that have performed better 
than they had in the previous year (green). The chart also shows the percentage of measures falling slightly short of previous year levels (amber) and the 
percentage missing previous year levels (red). 
 
143 measures can be compared against previous year and 62% show improvement, this is a 
higher rate of improvement than the last 4 years as can be seen in the table below.  The decline in 
year on year performance in 2010/11 can be attributed to the impact of the budget pressures 
beginning to take hold. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Performance Against Target 
Targets for performance measures are determined during the service planning process and set out 
the desired standard or level of performance to be achieved during the year. The chart below shows how the basket of 208 performance measures has 
performed against targets.   

 
Performance for this comparator has increased by 13% to 77% of measures meeting or exceeding 
targets. 
 

  

Against Previous Year 

Year 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

Green 
Measures 

67% 72% 55% 54% 55% 56% 62% 

Amber 
Measures 

23% 20% 34% 32% 33% 31% 22% 

Red 
Measures 

10% 8% 11% 14% 12% 13% 15% 

Performance Against Target 

Year 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

Green 
Measures 

64% 66% 61% 50% 64% 64% 77% 

Amber 
Measures 

21% 22% 25% 35% 25% 24% 16% 

Red 
Measures 

15% 12% 14% 15% 11% 12% 7% 
 

62% 

22% 

15% 

14/15 Service Plan Indicators Against Previous Year   

77% 

16% 

7% 

14/15 Service Plan Indicators Against Target 

P
age 8



 
 
National Strategic Indicators (NSI) and Public Accountability Measures (PAM) Performance 
NSI and PAM performance for Newport has improved in 14/15; performance against targets, against previous year and against Wales average is better than 
13/14.   
 

 Average rank 16th in Wales (compared to 22nd in 13/14) 

 Year on year improvement relative to self 71.4% (compared to 59% in 13/14)  
 

 
 
 
 

NSI and PAM Performance 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

Better than Wales average data 41% 43% 52% 

Better than previous year 37% 64% 71.4% 

Better than target 59% 68% 76% 

 
 

59% 

68% 

76% 

37% 

64% 

71.4% 

41% 

43% 

52% 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%

2012/13

2013/14

2014/15

NSI and PAM Performance 

Better than Wales average Better than previous year Better than target

P
age 9



 
Quartile Performance 
The number of measures in the upper quartiles has increased and the measures in the lower quartiles have reduced reflecting an improvement in 
performance. 

 8 measures in the top quartile (compared to 5 in 13/14) 

 13 measures in the bottom quartile (compared to 15 in 13/14) 
 

Year Quartile 1 Quartile 2 Quartile 3 Quartile 4 1&2 3&4 
Total 
Measures 

% in upper 2 
quartiles 

2014/15 8 13 8 13 21 21 42 50% 

2013/14 5 8 13 15 13 28 41 32% 

 
The measures in quartile 1 have been identified in Appendix 2 
 
The 13 Measures in Quartile 4 
Action for 2015/16 

 The following 13 NSIs and PAMs are in the bottom quartile for 2014/15, these measures are identified for improvement throughout 15/16. 

 Measures which have been in the bottom quartile for the last 2 years have been identified in Appendix 1 below. 
 

Measure Actual Target 
Previous 

Year 
Wales 

Average 
Rank 14/15 

Rank 
13/14 

Quartile 
13/14 

EDU/002i: The percentage of all pupils 
(including those in LA care) in any LA 
maintained school, aged 15 as at the 
preceding 31 August who leave compulsory 
education, training or work based learning 
without an approved external qualification 

0.3 0.5 (G) 0.6 (G) 0.4 (G) 17 19 4 

EDU/006ii: The percentage of pupils assessed, 
in schools maintained by the local authority, 
receiving a Teacher Assessment in Welsh (first 
language) at the end of Key Stage 3 

0 - (R) 0 (R) 17.2 (R) 19 19 4 

EDU/015a: The percentage of final statements 
of special education need issued within 26 
weeks including exceptions 

27.8 77.5 (R) 77.3 (R) 64.5 (R) 20 13 3 

EDU/015b: The percentage of final statements 
of special education need issued within 26 
weeks excluding exceptions 

37.5 97.9 (R) 97.8 (R) 95.6 (R) 21 18 4 

P
age 10



Measure Actual Target 
Previous 

Year 
Wales 

Average 
Rank 14/15 

Rank 
13/14 

Quartile 
13/14 

EDU/017: The percentage of pupils aged 15 at 
the preceding 31 August, in schools 
maintained by the local authority who achieved 
the Level 2 threshold including a GCSE grade 
A*-C in English or Welsh first language and 
mathematics 

52.8 52.5 (G) 51.3 (G) 55.5 (A) 17 15 3 

EDU/004: The percentage of pupils assessed 
at the end of Key Stage 3, in schools 
maintained by the local authority, achieving the 
Core Subject Indicator, as determined by 
Teacher Assessment 

77.1 76.5 (G) 78 (A) 81.2 (A) 19 11 2 

EDU/016a: Percentage of pupil attendance in 
primary schools 

94.2 93.6 (G) 93 (G) 94.8 (A) 21 21 4 

EDU/016b: Percentage of pupil attendance in 
secondary schools 

92.9 92.1 (G) 92.1 (G) 93.6 (A) 20 18 4 

SCA/001: The rate of delayed transfers of care 
for social care reasons per 1,000 population 
aged 75 or over 

5.37 6 (G) 11.51 (G) 4.83 (A) 17 21 4 

SCC/033e: The percentage of young people 
formerly looked after with whom the authority is 
in contact, who are known to be in suitable, 
non-emergency accommodation at the age of 
19 

86.4 95 (A) 100 (A) 93.1 (A) 22 1 1 

PSR/004: The percentage of private sector 
dwellings that had been vacant for more than 6 
months at 1 April that were returned to 
occupation during the year through direct 
action by the local authority 

3.36 4.5 (R) 4.33 (R) 11.76 (R) 19 16 3 

WMT/009(b): The percentage of municipal 
waste collected by local authorities and 
prepared for reuse and/or recycled, including 
source segregated biowastes that are 
composted or treated biologically in another 
way 

52.03 52 (G) 45.08 (G) 56.23 (G) 20 19 4 

LCL/001(b): The number of visits to Public 
Libraries during the year, per 1,000 population 

3978 4356 (A) 4432 (A) 5526 (R) 21 15 3 

Notes 
EDU/006ii: We have no welsh Medium Secondary School so report 0 

P
age 11



EDU/002i: The values for this measure are very low and a number of authorities have reported 0  

P
age 12



 
Wales Urban Area Analysis 
 
Due to the wide variations in the 22 councils in Wales it can be helpful to compare Newport to the other large urban areas across Wales. 
 
The chart below shows how many of the NSI’s and PAM’s are in each of the quartiles. It is desirable to have the majority of measures in the upper quartiles, 
and fewer measures in the bottom quartiles. 
 
 

 
 
 

The chart above shows that Newport has 21measures (50%) in the upper quartiles and 21 measures in the lower quartiles.  By comparison Cardiff has 28 
measures in the lower quartiles, Swansea 23 and Wrexham 22. 
 
 
 

Newport Cardiff Swansea Wrexham

Upper Quartile 8 4 7 9

Upper Middle Quartile 13 10 12 11

Lower Middle Quartile 8 12 13 10

Lower Quartile 13 16 10 12

8 

4 

7 

9 

13 

10 

12 
11 

8 

12 
13 

10 

13 

16 

10 

12 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

Wales Urban Area Performance 

P
age 13



Performance Measures by quartile for the last 3 years 

 
 
 

P
age 14



Reporting back: Performance Measures identified in the 13/14 analysis 
The following 14 measures were identified in the 13/14 analysis because they were red against target and/or previous year.  
Performance in 14/15 has generally improved with 4 of the measures green against every comparator and all but one of the measures performing 
better than target and  improving on the previous year.  The Wales average has been exceeded by 4 of these measures and it is worth noting that 2 
of these measures (EDU/002ii and SCC/041a) are now ranked number 1 in Wales. 
 

Measures 
Actual 
14/15 

Previous 
13/14 

Target 
14/15 

Wales 
Average 

14/15 
Quartile Rank 

EDU/002i: The percentage of all pupils (including 
those in LA care) in any LA maintained school, 
aged 15 as at the preceding 31 August who leave 
compulsory education, training or work based 
learning without an approved external qualification 

0.3 0.6 (G) 0. (G) 0.4 (G) 4 17 

EDU/002ii: The percentage of pupils in local 
authority care in any local authority maintained 
school, aged 15 as at the preceding 31 August who 
leave compulsory education, training or work based 
learning without an approved external qualification 

0.0 5.3 (G) 7.7% (G) 0 (G) 1 1 

EDU/015b: The percentage of final statements of 
special education need issued within 26 weeks 
excluding exceptions 

37.5 97.9 (R) 97.8% (R) 95.6 (R) 4 21 

EDU/016a: Percentage of pupil attendance in 
primary schools 

94.2 93 (G) 93.6 (G) 94.8 (A) 4 21 

EDU/016b: Percentage of pupil attendance in 
secondary schools 

92.9 92.1 (G) 92.1 (G) 93.6 (A) 4 20 

SCA/001: The rate of delayed transfers of care for 
social care reasons per 1,000 population aged 75 
or over 

5.37 11.51 (G) 6 (G) 4.83 (A) 4 17 

SCA/007: The percentage of clients with a care 
plan at 31 March whose care plans should have 
been reviewed that were reviewed during the year 

77.9 65 (G) 75 (G) 80 (A) 3 6 

SCC/004: The percentage of children looked after 
on 31 March who have had three or more 
placements during the year 

8.4 10.9 (G) 9 (G) 9 (A) 2 10 

SCC/041a: The percentage of eligible, relevant and 
former relevant children that have pathway plans as 
required 

100 87 (G) 90 (G) 91.2 (G) 1 1 

P
age 15



Measures 
Actual 
14/15 

Previous 
13/14 

Target 
14/15 

Wales 
Average 

14/15 
Quartile Rank 

SCC/025: The percentage of statutory visits to 
looked after children due in the year that took place 
in accordance with regulations 

90.8 82.2 (G) 87 (G) 87.7 (G) 2 9 

PSR/002: The average number of calendar days 
taken to deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant 

261 280 (G) 319 (G) 231 (A) 3 16 

WMT/004(b): The percentage of municipal waste 
collected by local authorities sent to landfill 

36.65 45.08 (G) 48 (G) 29.38 (R) 3 16 

WMT/009(b): The percentage of municipal waste 
collected by local authorities and prepared for 
reuse and/or recycled, including source segregated 
biowastes that are composted or treated 
biologically in another way 

52.03 51.70 (G) 52 (G) 56.24 (A) 4 20 

PPN/009: The percentage of food establishments 
which are ‘broadly compliant‘ with food hygiene 
standards 

93.03 85.01 (G) 83 (G) 94.19 (A) 3 16 

*EDU/006ii - We have no welsh Medium Secondary School so report 0 
HHA/013 - Welsh Government are no longer collecting this data in 15/16 
 

P
age 16



 
 
Financial Summary 
 

There are no financial implications to this report. Any improvements in performance levels will be 
made through existing council budgets 

 
Links to Council Policies and Priorities 
 
This report supports the administrations priorities. 
 
Options Available 
 

a)  to choose to monitor performance measures with declining performance 
b) not to monitor performance measures with declining performance 

 
Preferred Option and Why 
 
The preferred option is a. The Board play a key role in driving forward performance improvements and 
continued monitoring will ensure this remains the case. 
 

Comments of Chief Financial Officer 
To follow. 
 

Comments of Monitoring Officer 
To follow 
 

Staffing Implications: Comments of Head of People and Business Change 
There are no direct staffing implications. Our primary focus is on the NSIs and PAMs and to maintain the 
rate of improvement into 15/16 
 

Comments of Cabinet Member 
To follow. 
 

Local issues 
none 
 
 

Background Papers 
Set out a list of any relevant background papers and whether they are available to the public. 
 
Dated:  14th September 2015 
 
 

Page 17



Appendix 1 
Measures which have remained in the lower quartile 

 7 Measures have remained in the lower quartile in 14/15, the performance for 5 of these measures has improved since 13/14 

 The below tables and charts show these measures performance over the last 3 years and compared to the other Welsh Authorities in 
2014/15. 

Measures 
Actual 
14/15 

Target 
Previou

s 

Wales 
Averag
e 14/15 

Rank 
(Quartile
) 14/15 

Commentary 

EDU/015b: The percentage of final 
statements of special education need 
issued within 26 weeks excluding 
exceptions 

37.5 
97.9 
(R) 

97.8 (R) 
95.6 
(R) 

21 (4) 

This year the Welsh Audit Office advised us that 
we needed to use the received date rather than 
the first panel date (which we previously used), 
which dropped our figures dramatically. 

EDU/015b Compared to Other Authorities 14/15 
 

 
 
 

P
age 18



 

 
  

12/13 13/14 14/15

Actual 81 97.8 37.5

Quartile 4 4 4

Rank 21 18 21

Wales Average 95.9 96.6 95.6

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

EDU/015b Performance 12/13 - 14/15 

Actual

Quartile

Rank

Wales Average

P
age 19



Measures 
Actual 
14/15 

Target Previous 
Wales Average 

14/15 

Rank 
(Quartile) 

14/15 
Commentary 

SCA/001: The rate of delayed 
transfers of care for social care 
reasons per 1,000 population aged 
75 or over 5.37 6 (G) 11.51 (G) 4.83 (G) 17 (4) 

Performance for this measure has 
improved over the last 3 years with 
performance reducing from 11.84 in 
2013/14 to 5.37 in 2014/15 (high values 
are bad for this measure).  It is included 
in the 15/16 Improvement Plan to 
ensure that progress continues. 

 
SCA/001 Compared to Other Authorities 14/15 

 

 
 
  

P
age 20



 
  

12/13 13/14 14/15

Actual 11.84 11.51 5.37

Quartile 4 4 4

Rank 22 21 17

Wales Average 4.57 4.7 4.83

0

5

10

15

20

25

SCA/001 Performance 12/13 - 14/15 

Actual

Quartile

Rank

Wales Average

P
age 21



Measures 
Actual 
14/15 

Target Previous 
Wales 

Average 
14/15 

Rank 
(Quartile
) 14/15 

 

Commentary 

WMT/009(b): The percentage of municipal 
waste collected by local authorities and 
prepared for reuse and/or recycled, 
including source segregated biowastes that 
are composted or treated biologically in 
another way 

52.03 52 (G) 45.08 (G) 56.23 (A) 20 (4) 

There has been improvement in the 
performance of this measure over the 
last 3 years and it has been included in 
the 15/16 Improvement Plan to maintain 
focus on improvement. 

 
WMT/009b Compared to Other Authorities 14/15 

 

 
 

P
age 22



 
  

12/13 13/14 14/15

Actual 49.18 45.08 52.03

Quartile 4 4 4

Rank 17 19 20

Wales Average 52.26 54.33 56.23

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

WMT/009b Performance 12/13 - 14/15 

Actual

Quartile

Rank

Wales Average

P
age 23



 The below measures have remained in the lower quartile but the margins between each authority’s performance are minimal. 
  

Measures 
Actual 
14/15 

Target 
Previou

s 

Wales 
Average 

14/15 

Rank 
(Quartile) 

14/15 
Commentary 

EDU/016a: Percentage of pupil 
attendance in primary schools 

94.2 93.6 (G) 93 (G) 94.8 (A) 21 (4) 

There has been improvement in this measures 
performance over the last 3 years with high 
values close to the Welsh average being 
reported.  It has been included in the 15/16 
Improvement plan to continue to focus on 
improvement in this measure.  It is also an 
Outcome Agreement measure. 

 
EDU/016a Compared to Other Authorities 14/15 

 

 

P
age 24



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

12/13 13/14 14/15

Actual 93.4 93 94.2

Quartile 3 4 4

Rank 16 21 21

Wales Average 93.9 93.7 94.8

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

EDU/016a Performance 12/13 - 14/15 

Actual

Quartile

Rank

Wales Average

P
age 25



 

Measures 
Actual 
14/15 

Target 
Previou

s 

Wales 
Average 

14/15 

Rank 
(Quartile) 

14/15 
Commentary 

EDU/016b: Percentage of pupil 
attendance in secondary 
schools 

92.9 92.1 (G) 92.1 (G) 93.6 (A) 20 (4) 

As above; there has been improvement in this 
measure’s performance over the last 3 years with 
high values close to the Welsh average being 
reported.  It has been included in the 15/16 
Improvement plan to continue to focus on 
improvement in this measure.  It is also an 
Outcome Agreement measure 

 
EDU/016a Compared to Other Authorities 14/15 

 
 

 
 

P
age 26



 
 

 
  

12/13 13/14 14/15

Actual 91.9 92.1 92.9

Quartile 4 4 4

Rank 16 18 20

Wales Average 92.1 92.6 93.6

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

EDU/016b Performance 12/13 - 14/15 

Actual

Quartile

Rank

Wales Average

P
age 27



Measures 
Actual 
14/15 

Target 
Previou

s 

Wales 
Average 

14/15 

Rank 
(Quartile

) 
14/15 

Commentary 

EDU/002i: The percentage of all pupils 
(including those in LA care) in any LA 
maintained school, aged 15 as at the 
preceding 31 August who leave 
compulsory education, training or work 
based learning without an approved 
external qualification 

0.3 0.5 (G) 0.6 (G) 0.4 (G) 17 (4) 

The number of leavers in numerical terms is 
extremely low in comparison with the size of 
the total pupil cohort. Therefore the index 
creates a skewed and over inflated vision of 
improvement. When dealing with single figures 
this is largely the case. 

 
EDU/002i compared to other Authorities 14/15 

 

 
 

 
  

P
age 28



 
 

  

12/13 13/14 14/15

Actual 0.2 0.6 0.3

Quartile 2 4 4

Rank 9 19 17

Wales Average 0.4 0.3 0.4

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

EDU/002i Performance 12/13 - 14/15 

P
age 29



Appendix 2 
The 8 measures in Quartile 1 

Measure Actual Target 
Previous 

Year 
Wales 

Average 
Rank 14/15 Rank 13/14 

Quartile 
13/14 

EDU/002ii: The percentage of pupils in local 
authority care in any local authority maintained 
school, aged 15 as at the preceding 31 August 
who leave compulsory education, training or 
work based learning without an approved 
external qualification 

0 7.7 (G) 5.3 (G) 1.2 (G) 1 18 4 

SCA/002b: The rate of older people (aged 65 
or over) whom the authority supports in care 
homes per 1,000 population aged 65 or over at 
31 March 

14.36 17 (G) 16.2 (G) 18.85 (G) 2 4 1 

SCA/020: The percentage of adult clients who 
are supported in the community during the year 87.32 85 (G) 85.68 (G) 85.2 (G) 6 13 3 

SCC/033d: The percentage of young people 
formerly looked after with whom the authority is 
in contact at the age of 19 

100 92 (G) 93.1 (G) 93.3 (G) 1 14 3 

SCC/033f: The percentage of young people 
formerly looked after with whom the authority is 
in contact, who are known to be engaged in 
education, training or employment at the age of 
19 

68.2 55 (G) 51.9 (G) 59.5 (G) 6 13 3 

SCC:041a: The percentage of eligible, relevant 
and former relevant children that have pathway 
plans as required 

100 90 (G) 87 (G) 91.2 (G) 1 17 4 

SCC/045: The percentage of reviews of looked 
after children, children on the Child Protection 
Register and children in need carried out in line 
with the statutory timetable 

98.6 98 (G) 96.8 (G) 88.9 (G) 1 2 1 

STS/006: The percentage of reported fly 
tipping incidents cleared within 5 working days 98.09 98.5 (A) 98.54 (A) 93.05 (G) 4 6 1 

 
 

P
age 30



Good Practice Case Study:  

Setting Up a multi-dimensional approach to support and challenging schools through 

Academic Performance Reviews 

Context: 

Following the National Categorisation of schools in autumn 2014, the Local Authority 

adopted a new approach to supporting and challenging schools through Academic 

Performance Reviews.  

Schools categorised as red are required to meet with the Cabinet Member and Chief 

Education Officer on at least a termly basis to monitor progress of formal intervention plans. 

Schools categorised as amber are also monitored through frequent Challenge Advisor visits. 

In addition to this statutory process, The Local Authority has introduced a robust system of 

Academic Performance Reviews to ensure that yellow and green schools progress is also 

considered.  

 

Strategy: What was the aim?. 

Academic Performance Reviews give primary and secondary schools an opportunity to 

discuss their pupil outcomes in context. Schools are able to discuss their organisational 

strengths and weaknesses and describe future School Improvement Planning for the next 

three years. The session is open and honest and creates meaningful dialogue between the 

Local Authority and individual schools linked to standards, attendance, inclusion and wider 

school community agenda. It also enables the Local Authority to describe the impact the 

school has made on the LA Key Performance Indicators. 

 

Before Academic Performance Reviews were introduced,  there was a lack of opportunity to 

discuss the aforementioned agenda in the company of this wide set of accountable 

personnel. The Academic Performance Review group includes:  

The Cabinet Member , The Strategic Director, The Chief Education Officer, The Deputy 

Chief Education Officer , The Principal Challenge Advisor, The Head Teacher, Deputy Head 

Teacher and Chair of Governors.  

 

The benefits of meeting with yellow and green schools have been;  

 A detailed understanding of the dynamics associated with very good and excellent 

schools 

 Ensuring that we continue to know and understand all of our schools (in the light of a 

commissioned school improvement service).  

Page 31



 Value for money in meetings key people at the same time (1 meeting with a full set of 

accountable personnel, no separate meetings or duplication).  

 Creating pace within coasting schools and improving aspiration 

 Good governance. The model demonstrates how the LA holds schools to account 

and how Newport City Council holds Education Services to account 

 Establishing a mutual understanding of ‘key issues on the horizon’.  

 Preventing small issues becoming significant problems (linked to staffing, 

governance, buildings, provision).  

 Sharing and owning the corporate vision  

 Continuing to track schools through the full set of ‘colours’ or support categories (red, 

amber, yellow and green). 

 

Outcomes - What impact has this work had on provision and learners’ standards? 

 Pupil attendance has improved 

 Exclusion data has significantly improved 

 Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2 and 3 outcomes have improved 

 Good KS4 outcomes for the majority of secondary schools 

 Early indications show that primary categorisation stage 1 has improved  

 It is predicted that there will be an increase in the number of green primary 

schools across the city 

 There will be no red schools at primary level 

 Relationships with schools have improved (trust, mutual understanding and 

accepting challenge) 

 Improved shared accountability 

 Improved corporate identity for all involved 

 

Next Steps:  

In September 2015, The LA introduced a further level to this model which is specifically 

relevant for secondary schools that did not gain their expected outcomes at Key Stage 4. 

This layer is known as an ‘Academic Summit’. The Academic Summit replaces the Academic 

Performance Review and includes additional personnel (Head of Maths, Head of English, 

additional governors, Data Managers and the Managing Director of the EAS). The Summit is 

scheduled for 3 hours and progresses further ‘lines of enquiry’ to consider what the school 

needs to do to ensure that an improved performance trajectory is secured.  

Page 32



Report 
Performance Board  
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  28th September 2015 
 
Item No:    see above 
 

Subject Improvement Plan 15/16 Regeneration Investment and 
Housing Services: Developing and Regenerating the City 
theme. 

 

Purpose To update the Board on Progress made with the Improvement Objective from 

Regeneration Investment and Housing Services: Developing and 
Regenerating the City. 

 

Author  Beverly Owen, Head of Regeneration, Investment and Housing 

Mike Jones, Housing Services Manager 
 

Ward All 

 

Summary The Improvement Plan demonstrates the council’s commitment towards 

continuous improvement. For the Improvement Plan 15/16, eight 
improvement objectives were selected and their progress monitored quarterly 
through Cabinet. 

 
This report offers Performance Board and opportunity to explore the detail of 
one of the improvement objectives in more detail and to provide challenge on 
performance to date 
 
As at Q1, Developing and Regenerating the City is assessed as ‘Excellent’  

 

Proposal The board are requested to note the contents of the report 

 
Action by  Head of Regeneration, Investment and Housing Services 

 

Timetable Immediate 

 
This report was prepared after consultation with: 

 
   Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Development 
   Strategic Director, Place 
 

 

Signed 

Page 33

Agenda Item 5



Background 
 
The Improvement Plan demonstrates the council’s commitment towards continuous 
improvement. For the Improvement Plan 15/16, eight improvement objectives were selected 
and their progress monitored quarterly through Cabinet. 
 
This report offers Performance Board and opportunity to explore the detail of one of the 
improvement objectives in more detail and to provide challenge on performance to date 
 
As at Q1, Developing and Regenerating the City is assessed as ‘Excellent’  
 
City Regeneration and Development 
 
The objective is to make Newport an attractive place for: 

 The creation of opportunities for businesses to set up in Newport 

 Businesses to continue to deliver their services and develop their business 

 The city is seen as a destination for tourism, culture, sport and retail 

 Where the residents of the city benefit through increased employment and 
community benefits 

  
We will provide support to local businesses in order to promote economic growth and will 
enhance the city's skill base, generating additional employment for Newport residents 
through a variety of physical and social regeneration projects. 
 
Appendix one provides an update on this Improvement Objective 
 
 
Financial Summary 
 
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report 
 
Links to Council Policies and Priorities 
 
This report provides an update on one of the council’s eight Improvement objectives from the 
Improvement Plan 15/16. 
Developing and Regenerating the City contributes towards the Learning and Working City 
section of the Corporate Plan 
 
 
Options Available 
 
Report provided for information 
 
 

Comments of Chief Financial Officer 
 
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report 
. 
 

Comments of Monitoring Officer 
 
There are no legal implications arising from this report 
 

Page 34



Staffing Implications: Comments of Head of People and Business 
Change 
 
The report provides the Board with an update on the Developing and Regenerating the City 
improvement objective, as such there are no direct staffing implications identified. 
 
 

Comments of Cabinet Member 
 
Report author to confirm that the Cabinet Member has approved the report for consideration 
by cabinet. 
 

Local issues 
 
None 
 

Scrutiny Committees 
 
Scrutiny Committees were consulted when the improvement objectives were set as part of 
the process for developing the Improvement Plan. The improvement objectives form part of 
the service plan and progress on service plans is reported to Scrutiny twice a year. 
 

Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
Please consider if your proposals need an Equalities Impact Assessment and add comments 
here. 
 

Children and Families (Wales) Measure 
 
Reports to Cabinet Members to include a record of any consultation with children and young 
people as part of their decision making.  Please add here details of any consultation and the 
outcomes. 
 

Consultation  
 
Please use this section to include any comments received from wider consultation – 
including consultation with all elected members- this section, together with any responses: 
 

Background Papers 
 
Learning, Caring and Leisure Scrutiny Committee “Draft Improvement Plan 2015/16” 
(25/02/15) 
Streetscene, Regeneration and Safety Scrutiny Committee “Draft Improvement Plan 
2015/16” (12/02/15) 
Community Planning and Development Scrutiny Committee Draft Improvement Plan 15/16 
(18/02/15) 
Performance Board, Draft Improvement Plan 15/16 (23/03/15) 
Cabinet, Improvement Plan 15/16 (13/04/15) 
Council, Improvement Plan 15/16 (28/04/15) 
 
 
Dated: 8th September 2015 
 

Page 35



  

Page 36



Appendix One 
Improvement Plan – Theme 3 Developing and Regenerating the City 
Update for Performance Board 
 
 
3.1 To finalise and continue schemes started in year 1 of the programme and to 
commence new schemes identified as part of Vibrant & Viable Places Year 2 
 
Progress to date this financial year 
Progress has been positive against the timescales and outputs indicated in the Vibrant and 
Viable Places Programme for Newport.  The first major housing scheme of the programme is 
now complete at 62-66 Cardiff Road, also the first major housing-based scheme to complete 
in Wales.  A number of further schemes are on site along Cardiff Road, and land assembly 
continues at 123-129 Commercial Street. Several properties in the area have now been 
secured for demolition to enable new pedestrian routed to be created. 
 
At the north end of the city centre, the first flats at the former King’s Hotel are now on sale 
with the development of the Premier Inn opposite on target.  The redevelopment of the 
Potters Arms continues also, adjacent to the Friar’s Walk site.  The Seren Group 
redevelopment of Griffin Island, above the Principality Building Society, is also underway. 
 
Feasibility studies are underway for the redevelopment of several prominent city centre 
properties, and a draft version of the new City Centre Management Plan is available for 
comment.  Finally, the King’s Arms pub in Pill, a source of considerable public danger and 
criminal activity, has been demolished to pave the way for a new affordable housing 
development. 
 
Planned Activity 
Activity over the remainder of this financial year will be concentrated on continuing the 
projects currently underway.  Demolition contracts will shortly be tendered for the former 
Riley’s Snooker Club and 86-87 Commercial Street, a disused office block.   
 
The refurbishment of the National Buildings, 8, 38 and 40 Cardiff Road are anticipated to be 
complete by the end of October. 
 
Land assembly negotiations will continue in respect of securing the properties 123-129 
Commercial Street inclusive.  All but two have now been secured.  The refurbishment of the 
properties comprising Griffin Island will continue and construction will begin on the site of the 
former King’s Arms. 
 
A full launch of the sale properties at the King’s Hotel is planned this month.  An invite to the 
Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty to visit some completed schemes in Newport 
from the Leader of the Council has been accepted and is scheduled for the 24th September. 
 
 
3.2 Regeneration Strategy focussing on the physical environment and infrastructure, 
improvement in skills, training and job creation along with continued provision of 
robust business support for new and existing businesses. The strategy also provides 
support for the newly developed Business Improvement District and the opportunity 
to link themes within the strategy to similar themes within the BID 
  
Progress to date this financial year 
The Economic Growth Strategy has now been through the Scrutiny process and is currently 
out to consultation.  Following an overwhelming yes vote, the BID, Newport NOW, has been 
established.  

Page 37



 
206 businesses in Newport have received business advice and 82 Supperfast Britain 
broadband vouchers have been issued to businesses in quarter 1. 
 
Work has now been completed on the £6.7m Pillgwenlly Regeneration project.15 properties 
have been improved, through the creation of a new training facility utilising the old Pillgwenlly 
Library, 1,825 individuals took part in training courses.     
 
Planned Activity 
Following the consultation period the Strategy will be presented to Cabinet and Full Council. 
 
We will continue supporting Newport business with advice and broadband vouchers. 
 
The BID will now develop 3 themes, Future Newport, Safe & Secure Newport and Welcome 
to Newport. 
 
 
3.3 To continue to secure external funding for Regeneration programmes such as the 
continued redevelopment of the fourteen locks system and identification of a project 
to work with the Heritage Lottery Fund.  
 
Progress to date this financial year 
We are working with the Heritage Lottery Fund to develop projects for funding in Newport.  
 
In partnership with the Canals Trust we have secured £30,000 in Landfill Tax monies to 
complete the works to the pond at Fourteen Locks. 
 
Planned Activity 
We will continue to liaise with the Heritage Lottery Fund and the Wales European Funding 
Office with a view of securing project funding.   
 
Works to the pond at Fourteen Locks will commence in September. 
 
 
3.4 Continue to develop new and innovative large scale energy improvement work with 
energy companies and Welsh Government 
 
Progress to date this financial year 
In previous years Newport has had considerable success in securing external funding for 
external wall treatment to those hard to treat properties in Ringland, Bettws and Malpas. 
Further bid was submitted to Welsh Government for additional funding to continue and 
complete some of these areas but unfortunately Welsh Government has confirmed we have 
not been successful in securing funding for 2015 / 2016. 
 
Planned Activity 
Newport City Council and the South Wales Energy Agency are working to identify and 
secure funds from the energy companies though changes in their funding means it is unlikely 
significant funding will be supplied. 
 

Page 38



 
MEASURE UPDATE 
(G) = Green, performance is better than target / previous year 
(A) = Amber, performance has fallen slightly short of target / previous year 
(R) = Red, performance has missed target / previous year 
 
 

Measure Actual Q1 
15/16 
 

Target Q1 
15/16 

Previous 
Year  

Target whole 
year 15/16 

3b.RRS/L/037 Provision of coherent 
business support (Q) 

206 100 (G) 180 (G) 500 

3c. RRS/L/012 Number of people in 
training, job search or voluntary work 

135 120 (G) 179 (R) 1000 

3d. RRS/L/003 Economically inactive 
people supported back into work 

153 145 (G) 168 (A) 600 

3e. Number of homes benefitting 
from improved domestic energy 
performance measures and removed 
from fuel poverty 

0 0 (G) 0 (G) 300 

 
 
NEW MEASURES (no historical data available) 
 
Annual or Half-year measures (no historical data available) 
 

Measure Target whole year 15/16 

3a. RRS/L/036 – VVP – increase in city centre housing 19 – 18 completed to date 

 
 
 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Report 
Performance Board  
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  28th September 2015 
 
Item No:    see above 
 

Subject Improvement Plan 15/16 Regeneration Investment and 
Housing Services: Supporting young people into 
education, employment or training. 

 

Purpose To update the Board on Progress made with the Improvement Objective from 

Regeneration Investment and Housing Services: Supporting young people 
into education, employment or training. 

 

Author  Beverly Owen, Head of Regeneration, Investment and Housing 

Keir Duffin, Community Regeneration Manager 
Rhys Cornwall, Partnership Manager 

 

Ward All 

 

Summary The Improvement Plan demonstrates the council’s commitment towards 

continuous improvement. For the Improvement Plan 15/16, eight 
improvement objectives were selected and their progress monitored quarterly 
through Cabinet. 

 
This report offers Performance Board and opportunity to explore the detail of 
one of the improvement objectives in more detail and to provide challenge on 
performance to date 
 
As at Q1, the ‘Supporting young people into education, employment or 
training’ objective is assessed as ‘Excellent’  

 

Proposal The board are requested to note the contents of the report 

 
Action by  Head of Regeneration, Investment and Housing Services 

 

Timetable Immediate 

 
This report was prepared after consultation with: 

 
   Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Development 
   Strategic Director, Place 
 

 

Signed 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6



Background 
The Improvement Plan demonstrates the council’s commitment towards continuous 
improvement. For the Improvement Plan 15/16, eight improvement objectives were selected 
and their progress monitored quarterly through Cabinet. 
 
This report offers Performance Board and opportunity to explore the detail of one of the 
improvement objectives in more detail and to provide challenge on performance to date 
 
As at Q1, the ‘Supporting young people into education, employment or training’ objective is 
assessed as ‘Excellent’.  
 
Supporting young people into education, employment or training  
Engagement in learning and training are critical if young people are to make successes of 
their lives and meet their own needs and the needs of the city of Newport as an economic 
community. The Council and its partners have an important role to play in helping young 
people to make the most of opportunities for training and employment. The Improvement 
Objective measures the percentage of young people who are not in education, employment 
or training at key stages of their lives. 
 
Appendix one provides an update on this Improvement Objective 
 
 
Financial Summary 
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report 
 
Links to Council Policies and Priorities 
This report provides an update on one of the council’s eight Improvement objectives from the 
Improvement Plan 15/16. 
Supporting young people into education, employment or training contributes towards the 
Learning and Working City section of the Corporate Plan 
 
 
Options Available 
Report provided for information 
 
 

Comments of Chief Financial Officer 
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report 
. 
 

Comments of Monitoring Officer 
There are no legal implications arising from this report 
 

Staffing Implications: Comments of Head of People and Business 
Change 
The report provides the Board with an update on the Supporting young people into 
education, employment or training improvement objective, as such there are no direct 
staffing implications identified. 
 
 

Comments of Cabinet Member 
Report author to confirm that the Cabinet Member has approved the report for consideration 
by cabinet. 
 

Page 42



Local issues 
None 
 

Scrutiny Committees 
Scrutiny Committees were consulted when the improvement objectives were set as part of 
the process for developing the Improvement Plan. The improvement objectives form part of 
the service plan and progress on service plans is reported to Scrutiny twice a year. 
 

Equalities Impact Assessment 
Please consider if your proposals need an Equalities Impact Assessment and add comments 
here. 
 

Children and Families (Wales) Measure 
Reports to Cabinet Members to include a record of any consultation with children and young 
people as part of their decision making.  Please add here details of any consultation and the 
outcomes. 
 

Consultation  
Please use this section to include any comments received from wider consultation – 
including consultation with all elected members- this section, together with any responses: 
 

Background Papers 
Learning, Caring and Leisure Scrutiny Committee “Draft Improvement Plan 2015/16” 
(25/02/15) 
Streetscene, Regeneration and Safety Scrutiny Committee “Draft Improvement Plan 
2015/16” (12/02/15) 
Community Planning and Development Scrutiny Committee Draft Improvement Plan 15/16 
(18/02/15) 
Performance Board, Draft Improvement Plan 15/16 (23/03/15) 
Cabinet, Improvement Plan 15/16 (13/04/15) 
Council, Improvement Plan 15/16 (28/04/15) 
 
 
Dated: 8th September 2015 
  

Page 43



 
Appendix One 
Improvement Plan – Theme 4 Supporting young people into education, employment 
or training 
 
Update for Performance Board 
 
4.1 Develop and deliver specific employability programmes through Work-based 
Learning Academy (WBLA) to meet the needs of those young people who are only 
seeking employment. 
 
Progress to date this financial year 
We have worked with local stakeholders and employers to create work placement and 
employment opportunities. Through the One Newport partnership we have engaged Aneurin 
Bevan Health Board, the Local Authority, Newport University and the Seren group into our 
placement and employment process.  We have also targeted Newport based private 
companies such as TATA steel, Admiral Insurance and the Whitbread group. 
 
We have utilised our partnership with the university to support STEM subject development 
and create graduate placements with TATA steel within specific roles, successfully placing 
two graduates to date. 
 
The WBLA has also recently established local partnership arrangements with JCP and 
Careers Wales, to support the recruitments needs associated with major developments 
within the city centre. The partnership has engaged with Friars Walk retailers and the newly 
formed Business Improvement District, to utilise the WBLA, JCP and Careers Wales 
partnership as a ‘gateway’ for recruitment.  
 
Planned Activity 
The service will continue to work with established operational partnerships to engage further 
with employers and stakeholders, targeting Newport based Registered Social Landlords and 
local SMEs.   
This work will be overseen by the establishment of a strategic employability and skills 
partnership, where key employer representatives, together with training and employment 
partners will share issues and seek to develop programmes to address employer 
requirements and skills shortages, whilst supporting efforts to reduce economic inactivity.  
 
A joint funding programme will be developed between Communities First, Vibrant and Viable 
places and the WBLA to provide additional training for local people to support access to the 
opportunities afforded by local partnership arrangements.  
 
The STEM graduate programme will be progressed by engaging more STEM employers 
such as TATA steel and are developing a 2 day regional STEM event in partnership with the 
University of South Wales, TATA steel and the Celtic Manor.  The 2 day event will show 
case projects from graduates and incorporate visits from local schools.  
 
A recruitment fair event will be held on the 9th of September 2015, bringing together local 
unemployed people and a number of city centre retailers.  400 job vacancies will be made 
available on the day, with the event anticipating over 1000 visitors. 
 
Work will be undertaken to identify young people who are leaving school and wish to find 
employment.  This will be facilitated through a 12 week programme, working with schools 
and corporate services, to provide work placement opportunities and skills for young people 
relative to the industry sector that the identified young people are interested in pursuing. 
 

Page 44



 
4.2 Implement the Youth Engagement and Progression Framework action plan. 
  
Progress to date this financial year 

 Information Sharing Protocol developed and written and has been through Quality 
Assurance with WASPI.  

 School destination visits were carried out where potential Year 11 leavers were 
identified.  

 Data analysis carried out for tiers 1-4 with further work on tiers 2 and 4. 

 Agreement from Head Teachers and Learning Providers and systems put in place for 
the review of alternative education provision for Pre 16 to ensure it is of an 
appropriate standard and progression opportunities are in place.  This will be done 
with the EAS. 

 Full comprehensive mapping exercise undertaken with gaps identified. 

 The Leader of NCC has commissioned £28,000 to this agenda and Life Education 
has been commissioned.  This will involve at risk Year 9 pupils in the 4 of the 8 
Secondary schools. 

 The YEPF Coordinator has developed and carried out workshops with all Heads of 
Key Stage 5, the College and Careers Wales regarding young people at risk of 
disengaging. 

 Newport is taking the lead on 2 regional projects looking at reducing NEETS, and 
those at risk of NEETS. The projects will be delivered across Newport, Cardiff, 
Monmouth and Vale of Glamorgan, and will be part funded through the EU ESF 
programme. 

 
Planned Activity 

 ESF - To further develop both ESF projects with a view to approval in September/ 
October. 

 Implement life education in 4 schools.  SLA to be written and monitored by 
Coordinator. 

 A L.A summer plan for potential Year 11 NEET leavers with some external partners.   

 6th form strategy/protocol to be written 

 Fuller gap analysis of mapping 
 
 
 
 
4.3 Map provision for those young people unable to progress against their specific 
needs.  
 
Progress to date this financial year 
Full comprehensive mapping exercise undertaken with gaps identified. 
 
 
Planned Activity 

 Further work around gaps analysis with various services 

 Funding needs to be sought and realigned re gaps on provision.  The strategic group 
(YPEET) will impact on this. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



4.4 Meet regularly with Careers Wales, Schools, Work Based Learning Providers and 
Coleg Gwent to ensure provision appropriately meets the needs of young people.  
 
 
Progress to date this financial year 
Monthly meetings are carried out with the following groups: 
 

 16-18 practitioner group 

 Learning Provider Network 

 Tier 1 allocation meeting 
 
 
Planned Activity 

 Continuation of these meetings.   

 Additional meetings in September with all secondary Schools and Coleg Gwent to 
ensure progression. 

 
 
 
4.5 Development of Skills and Work service within Newport City Council. 
 
Progress to date this financial year 
Use a ‘backward’ view of what we currently know  
 
As a result of the creation of the new RIH service the work and skills functions within the 
different teams have been reviewed, clarifying how employability and learning programmes 
are structured and identifying commonalities for delivery and outcomes.  This will enable the 
services to improve coordination across of activities across Families First, Communities 
First, Flying Start, the Youth Service and Work and Skills. 
 
Work has continued to deliver year 3 of the contracted Work Programme and Work Choice 
provisions.  Programmes are currently on target against projected outcomes and an over 
achievement at financial year end is anticipated.  As a result, a 2 year extension on both 
contracts has been awarded until March 2017. 
 
Delivery against identified SIP outcomes, 2015/16 Performance Indicators and Outcome 
Agreements is also on track and are anticipated to be exceeded at financial year end.  
 
As highlighted above, a city wide Employment and Skills group for key stakeholder partners 
such as JCP, Working Links, Rehab Job FIT, Careers Service, as well as key employer 
representatives will be established. This group will support the Council to shape activities to 
address skills shortages and support local people into available work opportunities by 
developing and providing training to meet the skills gap.  
 
The early development of three European Social Funded programmes is also currently 
underway.  Two of the projects will aim to reduce the numbers of young people not in 
education, training or employment (NEET) and those at risk of becoming NEET in Newport 
by engaging and supporting individuals to gain a range of skills, qualifications and 
meaningful work placements.  A third work-based project will focus on identifying skills gaps 
and demands in local employers, with a view to delivering appropriate, accredited 
qualifications, with appropriate underpinning support.  The aim is to improve opportunities for 
employee progression and improve productivity and stability for employers.  Underpinning 
support will be provided to assist participants in achieving their qualification and progression. 
 

Page 46



 
Planned Activity 

 Future look at what is planned for the year ahead 

 Work with funders to identify further opportunities / bid for additional contracts to 
extend existing provision and support the Work and Skills activity within the service. 

 Continue to promote and develop the WBLA concept, strengthening operational 
partnerships. 

 Develop a strategic Employment and Skills group to meet the skills needs of 
employers, creating  more opportunities for unemployed individuals 

 Continue to develop ESF opportunities with WEFO, develop working groups and 
delivery models. Liaise with finance teams and stakeholders to further progress the 
bids. 

 
 

Page 47



 
 
Safeguarding Action Plan 
 
The Safeguarding Action Plan combines the pre-existing Safeguarding Action Plan for 2014/15 with the Improvement Plan put in place to address the 
Proposals for Improvement put to the Council by the Wales Audit Office (WAO) through their review of “Local Authority Arrangements to Support 
Safeguarding of Children” issued in draft August 2014. Since June 2015 we have begun to analyse each service area individually, Education, Adults 
and Children using the Wales Audit Office matrix. This will provide a more robust and quality assured plan to improve each service area. The 
combined outcome findings will provide a Corporate plan for continual improvement.  
 
The WAO report and associated action plan was considered by Learning Caring and Leisure Scrutiny on 15th April 2015. The following six proposals 
for improvement will be subject to quarterly monitoring as part of the regular reporting arrangements to Cabinet. 
 
 
Proposal for Improvement Actions required Progress to date Timescale  Lead Officer       

Job titles 
RAG 
Status  

P1. Develop Corporate 
Safeguarding Procedures 
that clearly specify roles 
and responsibilities for 
safeguarding to work to the 
All Wales Child Protection 
Procedures 

Completed 
 

An overarching council wide policy has been 
developed. Underpinning the council wide 
policy separate documents have been agreed 
in respect of Children’s Services, Adult 
Services  and Education. 
The Corporate Policy and the three specific 
policies for Adults Services, Children’s 
Services and Education are attached as a 
background paper   

30.9.2014   
 
 
 
 

HoCS  GREEN 
 
 

Completed 
 

A poster to emphasise the safeguarding 
responsibilities of all has been developed  
The poster has been widely distributed and 
paper copies will be circulated on 15.4.15 

30.9.2014 HoCS 
 

GREEN 
 

Completed 
 

Distribution of the Corporate Safeguarding 
policies via each service area 
Distribution of poster materials highlighting 
policies  
Use of Council Intranet and Yammer to 
promote the policies 
Policies added with a specific area on the 
Intranet 

31.12.14 
 
 
30.11.14 
 
31.12.14 

HoCS 
 
 
HoCS 
 
HoCS 
 

GREEN 
 

Completed 
 

Policies shared with the Learning and Review 
Group membership 

3.12.14 HoCS 
 

GREEN 
 

P
age 48



Proposal for Improvement Actions required Progress to date Timescale  Lead Officer       
Job titles 

RAG 
Status  

P2. Agree Designated 
Safeguarding Officers within 
all of the Council’s service 
areas 

Representatives from key service 
areas attend Learning and 
Review group on a regular and/or  
invited basis   
 

Completed 9.7.14 HoCS 
 

GREEN 
 

Safeguarding fixed agenda item 
for People Portfolio Board 
 

Completed 30.11.14 Strategic 
Director 

GREEN 
 

Seek nominations for 
Safeguarding leads for each of 
the Council Services areas 
 

Nominations received from service areas. 
The delay in the appointment of the 
Safeguarding Service Manager has delayed 
the work across service areas. This will now 
commence in June 2015.   

30.11.14 HoCS AMBER 

Action plan in each service area 
reviewed by People Portfolio 
Board. All service area plans to 
outline safeguarding training as a 
key priority 
 

As above. 
Safeguarding to be highlighted for all Service 
plans in guidance for planning. 

31.5.15 Service Area 
Leads 

AMBER 

Half year updates from each 
service area to People Portfolio 
Board  
 

As above.  28.2.15 Strategic 
Director 

AMBER 

P3. Improve the range, 
quality and coverage of 
safeguarding performance 
reporting to provide 
adequate assurance that 
corporate arrangements are 
working effectively 

Completed  
 

Children and Adult Services Performance 
Board including all Service Mangers meets on 
a six weekly cycle of review performance 
including safeguarding. 

July 2014 Strategic 
Director 

GREEN 

Completed  
 

Children Services team managers’ meetings 
includes section on performance 

Sept 2014 Service 
managers  

 

Review the relationship between 
Newport Learning & Review 
Group and SEWSCB. Report 
back to People Portfolio and SLT  
 

Agenda item for Learning and Review group 
26.3.2015 
Agenda item for People Portfolio Board 
28.4.2015 

31.1.15 HoCS AMBER 

Confirm six monthly reporting of 
safeguarding data to Strategic 
Leadership Team 
 

Meeting dates agreed post April 2015 30.11.14 HoCS AMBER 

P
age 49



Proposal for Improvement Actions required Progress to date Timescale  Lead Officer       
Job titles 

RAG 
Status  

P4. Improve the work of the 
Council’s Scrutiny 
Committees to ensure it is 
providing assurance on the 
effectiveness of the 
Council’s corporate 
safeguarding arrangements 

Completed  
 

Safeguarding agenda item for Scrutiny 
January 2015 to consider both the WAO report 
but also longer term reporting requirements 
Delayed as a result of competing agenda items 
until 15.4.2015 

21.1.15 Scrutiny 
Officer 

GREEN 

Completed  
 

Scrutiny undertaking a review of Child Sexual 
Exploitation. CSE event coordinated by 
Scrutiny with Children’s Services 

11.9.14 Scrutiny 
Officer and 
HoCS 

GREEN 

P5. Ensure all elected 
members and staff who 
come into contact with 
children on a regular basis 
receive training on 
safeguarding and child 
protection issues and the 
Councils corporate policy 
on safeguarding 

Safeguarding as an agenda item 
for all briefings for the Cabinet 
Member for Education and Young 
People 
 
 
Review availability of training for 
all staff and elected members 
 
 
Safeguarding sessions for elected 
members 

 
 

All briefings include Safeguarding  
 
 
 
 
With the SEWSCB materials now available to 
offer online. 
 
 
Scrutiny session on CSE. 
Further sessions to be planned 

30.11.14 
 
30.11.14 
 
 
30.11.14 
 
 
 
31.12.14 

HoCS and  
Chief 
Education 
Officer 
 
HoCS and  
Safeguarding 
unit 
 
HoCS  and 
Safeguarding 
unit 

GREEN 

P6. Identify and agree an 
appropriate internal audit 
programme of work for 
safeguarding 

Clarify internal audit plan to 
include safeguarding     

To be included in the 2015/16 audit plan 31.3.15 HoCS  

 

 
MEASURE UPDATE 
(G) = Green, performance is better than target / previous year 
(A) = Amber, performance has fallen slightly short of target / previous year 
(R) = Red, performance has missed target / previous year 
 
 

Measure Actual Q1 15/16 
 

Target Q1 15/16 Previous Year  Target whole year 15/16 

4a.NEET/01 Number families accessing family skills 
project (Q) 

111 68 (G) 96 (G) 270 

4b. NEET/02 Number young people accessing children 399 221 (G) 444 (A) 885 

P
age 50



and yp skills project 

4d. NEET/04 Number entrants into work based learning 
academy  

51 50 (G) 63 (R) 480 

 
 
Annual or Half-year measures (no data available) 
 

Measure Target whole year 15/16 

4c. NEET/03 Number enrolments on basic skills courses 19 

4e. NEET/05 Retention rate basic skills course 80% (academic year 14/15) 

4f. NEET/06 Achievement rate basic skills course 70% (academic year 14/15) 

4g. NEET/07 Retention rate community learning courses 85% (academic year 14/15) 

4h. NEET/08a Achievement rate community learning courses 85% (academic year 14/15) 

4i. % year 11 NEETS (SIP) 4.8% (academic year 14/15) 

4j. % year 13 NEETS (SIP) 7.0% (academic year 14/15) 

4k. NEET/09 % 16-18 year olds not in education, employment of 
training 

10% (Oct 2015) 
 

4l. NEET/10 Number graduates work based learning academy 
progressing to further opportunity 

80 

 
NEET/10 – Up to 31st July 2015 we have delivered a total of 51 people against an annual target of 80 
 

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Performance Analysis 2014/15
	1a  Case Study APR Education for PB 14SEP15

	5 Improvement Plan 15/16 Regeneration Investment and Housing Services: Developing and Regenerating the City theme.
	6 Improvement Plan 15/16 Regeneration Investment and Housing Services: Supporting young people into education, employment or training.

